Short Form Base Shelf Prospectus

No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise.

This short form base shelf prospectus has been filed under legislation in each of the provinces and territories of Canada that permits certain information about these securities to be determined after this prospectus has become final and that permits the omission from this prospectus of that information. The legislation requires the delivery to purchasers of a prospectus supplement containing the omitted information within a specified period of time after agreeing to purchase any of these securities. This short form base shelf prospectus has been filed in reliance on an exemption from the preliminary base shelf prospectus requirement for a well-known seasoned issuer.

This short form base shelf prospectus constitutes a public offering of these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale and therein only by persons permitted to sell such securities. The securities to be issued hereunder have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities Act") and, subject to certain exceptions, may not be offered, sold or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act). See "Plan of Distribution".

Information has been incorporated by reference in this short form base shelf prospectus from documents filed with securities commissions or similar authorities in Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference may be obtained on request without charge from the corporate secretary of the issuer at the Corporate Secretary's Department, 40 Temperance Street, Toronto, Ontario M5H 0B4, telephone: (416) 866-3672, and are also available electronically at www.sedarplus.ca.

New Issue

March 4, 2024

SHORT FORM BASE SHELF PROSPECTUS



The Bank of Nova Scotia Senior Notes (Principal at Risk Notes)

The Bank of Nova Scotia (the "Bank") may, from time to time, offer and issue under this prospectus and any amendments hereto or amendment and restatement hereof (the "Prospectus"), unsecured and unsubordinated debt securities (principal at risk notes) (the "Notes") in one or more tranches or series. As direct senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Bank, the Notes will rank equally with all other present and future direct senior unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Bank, subject to certain priorities under applicable law.

The Notes will not constitute deposits under the *Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act* or under any other deposit insurance regime.

The specific terms of the Notes in respect of which this Prospectus is being delivered will be set forth in one or more prospectus supplements and/or pricing supplements, as applicable (the "product supplements" and the "pricing supplements", respectively), that will be delivered to purchasers with this Prospectus, and may include, where applicable, the specific designation, aggregate principal amount, the currency or the currency unit for which the Notes may be purchased, maturity, variable return (including interest), authorized denominations, offering price, any terms for redemption at the option of the Bank or the holder of the Notes, any exchange or conversion terms and any other specific terms. Each product supplement and pricing supplement will be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus for the

purposes of securities legislation as of the date of such product supplement or pricing supplement, as the case may be, and only for the purposes of the distribution of the tranche or series of Notes to which the product supplement or pricing supplement pertains. The Bank reserves the right to set forth in a product supplement or pricing supplement specific variable terms that are not within the parameters set forth herein.

The principal amount of a Note payable at or prior to maturity or any variable return or other payment, other than any minimum principal repayment, will be determined, in whole or in part, by reference to one or more equity or other securities or financial instruments, units, interests or other securities of one or more publicly offered companies, limited partnerships, limited liability companies, investment funds, exchange-traded funds or portfolios, currencies, credit, the price or value of any commodity or other asset, one or more models, formulae or indices, any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, or any basket or combination of the foregoing.

Amounts paid to holders of Notes will depend on the performance of the underlying interests. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, the Bank does not guarantee that any of the principal amount of Notes will be paid at or prior to maturity or that any return will be paid on Notes. Subject to a minimum repayment of \$1.00 per Note or such greater minimum guaranteed amount as may be specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, purchasers could lose substantially all of their investment in Notes. Notes are not appropriate investments for persons who do not understand the risks associated with structured products or derivatives. Purchasers should read carefully the "Risk Factors" section in this Prospectus and in each of the applicable product supplement and pricing supplement.

The Notes offered under this Prospectus may not be conventional notes or debt securities. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, there is no assurance that any of the principal amount of the Notes will be paid at or before maturity, other than the minimum principal repayment specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement. In addition, the Notes may not provide holders with a return or income stream prior to maturity calculated by reference to a fixed or floating rate of interest determinable prior to maturity. An investment in Notes, unlike traditional debt obligations of Canadian chartered banks, may be uncertain in that they could produce no return on a purchaser's original investment or not repay any of their principal amount at or prior to maturity or otherwise, other than the minimum principal repayment specified in the applicable product supplement specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement and the principal repayment specified in the applicable product supplement or not repay any of their principal amount at or prior to maturity or otherwise, other than the minimum principal repayment specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement.

In compliance with applicable Canadian securities laws, the Bank will file with the Canadian securities regulators undertakings that, subject to certain exceptions, it will not distribute Notes in Canada that are considered "novel" specified derivatives within the meaning of applicable securities laws, or that fall outside certain specified parameters, without pre-clearing with the regulators the disclosure contained in the applicable product supplements and pricing supplements pertaining to such Notes. A copy of this undertaking will be available from the corporate secretary of the Bank at the address indicated on the cover of this Prospectus and will also be available electronically at <u>www.sedarplus.ca</u>.

As of the date hereof, the Bank has determined that it qualifies as a "well-known seasoned issuer" under the WKSI Blanket Orders (as defined below). See "Reliance on Exemptions for Well-Known Seasoned Issuers".

Unless otherwise disclosed in a prospectus supplement or pricing supplement relating to specific Notes, there may be no market through which Notes may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell Notes purchased under this Prospectus. This may affect the pricing of Notes in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices of Notes, the liquidity of Notes and the extent of issuer regulation. See "Risk Factors".

The Notes will be offered severally by one or more of Scotia Capital Inc. ("Scotia Capital"), Desjardins Securities Inc., iA Private Wealth Inc., Manulife Wealth Inc., Richardson Wealth Limited and Wellington-Altus Private Wealth Inc. and other dealers that may be appointed from time to time (collectively, the "Investment Dealers"). Under a dealer agreement dated March 4, 2024, as may be amended or amended and restated from time to time, between the Bank and the Investment Dealers (the "Dealer Agreement"), the Notes may be purchased or offered at various times by any of the Investment Dealers, as agent, dealer, underwriter or principal, at prices and commissions to be agreed upon, for sale to the public at prices to be negotiated with purchasers. Sale prices may vary during the distribution period and as between purchasers. The Bank may also offer the Notes to purchasers directly, pursuant to applicable law, at prices and on terms to be negotiated. The applicable pricing supplement will identify each Investment Dealer engaged in connection with the offering and sale of any Notes, and will also set forth the terms of the offering of such Notes including the net proceeds to the Bank and, to the extent applicable, any fees payable to the Investment Dealers. The offerings are subject to approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Bank by Stikeman Elliott LLP and on behalf of the Investment Dealers by Torys LLP.

Guillermo E. Babatz, Scott B. Bonham, Daniel H. Callahan, W. Dave Dowrich and Michael D. Penner (each a director of the Bank resident outside of Canada) have appointed the Bank at 40 Temperance Street, Toronto, Ontario M5H 0B4 as agent for service of process. Purchasers are advised that it may not be possible for investors to enforce judgments obtained in Canada against any person or company that is incorporated, continued or otherwise organized under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction or resides outside of Canada, even if the party has appointed an agent for service of process.

Scotia Capital will be involved in the decision to distribute Notes hereunder and in the determination of the terms of each particular offering of Notes. Scotia Capital is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. Consequently, the Bank is a related and connected issuer of Scotia Capital within the meaning of applicable securities legislation. See "Plan of Distribution".

The head office of the Bank is located at 1709 Hollis Street, Halifax, Nova Scotia B3J 1W1 and its executive offices are located at 40 Temperance Street, Toronto, Ontario M5H 0B4.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Forward-looking Statements	4
Forward-looking Statements Frademark Notice	6
Documents Incorporated by Reference	
About this Prospectus for Notes	7
Currency	7
CurrencyBusiness of the Bank	7
Description of the Notes	8
Earnings Coverage	. 19
Plan of Distribution	. 20
Secondary Market for Notes	. 21
Risk Factors	. 22
Jse of Proceeds	. 26
nterests of Experts	. 26
egal Matters	. 26
Reliance on Exemptions for Well-Known Seasoned Issuers	
Purchasers' Statutory Rights	. 27
Certificate of the Bank	C-1
Certificate of the Dealers	C-2

Forward-looking Statements

From time to time, the Bank's public communications include oral or written forward-looking statements. Statements of this type are included in this document, and may be included in other filings with Canadian securities regulators or the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or in other communications. In addition, representatives of the Bank may include forward-looking statements orally to analysts, investors, the media and others. All such statements are made pursuant to the "safe harbor" provisions of the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and any applicable Canadian securities legislation. Forward-looking statements may include, but are not limited to, statements made in this document, the Management's Discussion and Analysis in the Bank's 2023 Annual Report (as defined below) under the headings "Outlook" and in other statements regarding the Bank's objectives, strategies to achieve those objectives, the regulatory environment in which the Bank operates, anticipated financial results, and the outlook for the Bank's businesses and for the Canadian, U.S. and global economies. Such statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as "believe," "expect," "aim," "achieve," "foresee," "forecast," "anticipate," "intend," "estimate," "plan," "goal," "strive," "target," "project," "should," "would," "might," "can" and "could" and positive and negative variations thereof.

By their very nature, forward-looking statements require the Bank to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties, which give rise to the possibility that the Bank's predictions, forecasts, projections, expectations or conclusions will not prove to be accurate, that the Bank's assumptions may not be correct and that the Bank's financial performance objectives, vision and strategic goals will not be achieved.

The Bank cautions readers not to place undue reliance on these statements as a number of risk factors, many of which are beyond the Bank's control and effects of which can be difficult to predict, could cause

the Bank's actual results to differ materially from the expectations, targets, estimates or intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements.

The future outcomes that relate to forward-looking statements may be influenced by many factors, including but not limited to: general economic and market conditions in the countries in which the Bank operates and globally; changes in currency and interest rates; increased funding costs and market volatility due to market illiquidity and competition for funding; the failure of third parties to comply with their obligations to the Bank and its affiliates; changes in monetary, fiscal, or economic policy and tax legislation and interpretation; changes in laws and regulations or in supervisory expectations or requirements, including capital, interest rate and liquidity requirements and guidance, and the effect of such changes on funding costs; geopolitical risk; changes to the Bank's credit ratings; the possible effects on the Bank's business of war or terrorist actions and unforeseen consequences arising from such actions; technological changes and technology resiliency; operational and infrastructure risks; reputational risks; the accuracy and completeness of information the Bank receives on customers and counterparties; the timely development and introduction of new products and services, and the extent to which products or services previously sold by the Bank require the Bank to incur liabilities or absorb losses not contemplated at their origination; the Bank's ability to execute its strategic plans, including the successful completion of acquisitions and dispositions, including obtaining regulatory approvals; critical accounting estimates and the effect of changes to accounting standards, rules and interpretations on these estimates; global capital markets activity; the Bank's ability to attract, develop and retain key executives; the evolution of various types of fraud or other criminal behaviour to which the Bank is exposed; anti-money laundering; disruptions or attacks (including cyberattacks) on the Bank's information technology, internet connectivity, network accessibility, or other voice or data communications systems or services, which may result in data breaches, unauthorized access to sensitive information, and potential incidents of identity theft; increased competition in the geographic and in business areas in which the Bank operates, including through internet and mobile banking and non-traditional competitors; exposure related to significant litigation and regulatory matters; climate change and other environmental and social risks, including sustainability that may arise, including from the Bank's business activities; the occurrence of natural and unnatural catastrophic events and claims resulting from such events; inflationary pressures; Canadian housing and household indebtedness; the emergence or continuation of widespread health emergencies or pandemics, including their impact on the global economy, financial market conditions and the Bank's business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects; and the Bank's anticipation of and success in managing the risks implied by the foregoing. A substantial amount of the Bank's business involves making loans or otherwise committing resources to specific companies, industries or countries. Unforeseen events affecting such borrowers, industries or countries could have a material adverse effect on the Bank's financial results, businesses, financial condition or liquidity. These and other factors may cause the Bank's actual performance to differ materially from that contemplated by forward-looking statements. The Bank cautions that the preceding list is not exhaustive of all possible risk factors and other factors could also adversely affect the Bank's results, for more information, please see the "Risk Management" section of the Bank's 2023 Annual Report, as may be updated by quarterly reports.

Material economic assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are set out in the 2023 Annual Report under the headings "Outlook", as updated by quarterly reports. The "Outlook" and "2024 Priorities" sections are based on the Bank's views and the actual outcome is uncertain. Readers should consider the above-noted factors when reviewing these sections. When relying on forward-looking statements to make decisions with respect to the Bank and its securities, investors and others should carefully consider the preceding factors, other uncertainties and potential events.

Any forward-looking statements contained in the 2023 Annual Report represent the views of management only as of the date thereof and are presented for the purpose of assisting the Bank's shareholders and analysts in understanding the Bank's financial position, objectives and priorities, and

anticipated financial performance as at and for the periods ended on the dates presented, and may not be appropriate for other purposes. Except as required by law, the Bank does not undertake to update any forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time by or on its behalf.

Trademark Notice

™ Trademark of The Bank of Nova Scotia, used under license (where applicable). Scotiabank is a marketing name for the global corporate and investment banking and capital markets businesses of The Bank of Nova Scotia and certain of its affiliates in the countries where they operate including Scotia Capital Inc. (Member-Canadian Investor Protection Fund and regulated by the Canadian Investment Regulatory Organization). Important legal information mav be accessed at https://www.gbm.scotiabank.com/en/legal.html. Products and services described are available only by Scotiabank licensed entities in jurisdictions where permitted by law. This information is not directed to or intended for use by any person resident or located in any country where its distribution is contrary to its laws. Not all products and services are offered in all jurisdictions.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

The following documents have been filed with the securities regulatory authorities in each province and territory of Canada and are specifically incorporated by reference into, and form an integral part of, this Prospectus:

- (a) the Bank's annual information form dated November 28, 2023, for the year ended October 31, 2023 (the "Annual Information Form");
- (b) the Bank's consolidated financial statements, comprising the consolidated statements of financial position as at October 31, 2023 and 2022, and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended October 31, 2023, together with the auditors' report thereon dated November 28, 2023;
- (c) the Bank's management's discussion and analysis for the year ended October 31, 2023 dated November 28, 2023 (the "2023 Annual MD&A") as contained in the Bank's annual report as of October 31, 2023 (the "2023 Annual Report");
- (d) the Bank's unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the three months ended January 31, 2024;
- (e) the Bank's management's discussion and analysis for the three months ended January 31, 2024 (the "Q1 MD&A"); and
- (f) the Bank's notice of annual meeting and management proxy circular dated February 7, 2024.

Any documents of the type referred to in the preceding paragraph, any material change reports (excluding confidential material change reports), any business acquisition reports and any other disclosure documents required to be incorporated by reference in this Prospectus, filed by the Bank with a securities regulatory authority in Canada after the date of this Prospectus and prior to the completion or withdrawal of any offering hereunder, will be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

Any statement contained or contemplated in this Prospectus or in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Prospectus to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Prospectus.

Upon a new management proxy circular, annual information form or new annual financial statements, together with the auditors' report thereon and management's discussion and analysis contained therein, being filed by the Bank with the applicable securities regulatory authority during the term of this Prospectus, the previous annual information form, management proxy circular, annual financial statements or management's discussion and analysis, as applicable, and all unaudited interim financial statements, information circulars, business acquisition reports and other disclosure documents, as applicable, filed prior to the date on which the new management proxy circular, annual information form or annual financial statements are filed (and all material change reports filed prior to the end of the Bank's financial year in respect of which the new management proxy circular, annual information form or annual financial statements are filed) shall be deemed no longer to be incorporated into this Prospectus for purposes of future offers and sales of Notes hereunder.

About this Prospectus for Notes

The Notes will be described in separate documents, including: (1) this Prospectus, and (2) (i) one or more prospectus supplements which generally describes a particular type of Note the Bank may issue (each a "product supplement") under the program being described in this Prospectus, and/or (ii) a prospectus supplement that contains the specific terms (including pricing information) about the Notes being offered (a "pricing supplement"). In respect of any particular Notes the Bank may offer under the program described in this Prospectus, this Prospectus together with the applicable product supplement and/or pricing supplement will collectively constitute the "prospectus" for such Notes. Since the specific terms of Notes that the Bank may offer may differ from the general information provided in this Prospectus, in all cases purchasers should rely on the information in the applicable product supplement and/or pricing supplement where it differs from that in this Prospectus and should rely on the information in the applicable product supplement.

Currency

Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts appearing in this Prospectus are stated in Canadian dollars.

Business of the Bank

The Bank is a Canadian chartered bank under the *Bank Act* (Canada), which is the charter of the Bank and governs its operations.

The Bank is a leading bank in the Americas. The Bank helps its customers, their families and their communities achieve success through a broad range of advice, products and services, including personal

and commercial banking, wealth management and private banking, corporate and investment banking, and capital markets with assets of approximately \$1.4 trillion (as at January 31, 2024).

Additional information with respect to the Bank's business, including a list of the principal subsidiaries directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the Bank, is incorporated by reference from the Bank's Annual Information Form. The Annual Information Form also includes information regarding the Bank's credit ratings from various rating agencies. Purchasers should consult the relevant rating organization with respect to the interpretation and implications of such rating. Any such rating should not be construed as a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Notes offered. Ratings may be revised or withdrawn at any time by the respective rating organizations.

Description of the Notes

The Notes will be issued from time to time during the 25-month period that this Prospectus remains valid.

The Notes will constitute direct senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Bank and will rank equally with all other present and future direct senior unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Bank, subject to certain priorities under applicable law, and will be payable rateably without any preference or priority. **The Notes will not constitute deposits that are insured under the** *Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act* or any other deposit insurance regime.

The Notes will be issued in one or more tranches of one or more series. The specific terms of any offering of Notes not described herein including, without limitation, the initial offering price, any discount or commission to be paid to any Investment Dealers, the aggregate principal amount, currency, issue price and maturity date of the Notes being offered, applicable fees and the proceeds to the Bank, will be set forth in the applicable product supplement and pricing supplement that will be delivered to purchasers together with this Prospectus in connection with the sale of such Notes.

Principal at Risk

The applicable product supplement and pricing supplement for the Notes will specify the amount of the principal of the Notes that is "protected", which amount may be as little as 1% of the principal amount of such Notes. Notes in respect of which the minimum principal repayment by the Bank will be an amount in excess of 1% of the principal are referred to as "partially principal protected notes". All other Notes offered under this Prospectus are "non-protected notes", which means that all but 1% of the principal amount of such Notes will be fully exposed and an investor could lose substantially all of its investment.

Type of Notes and Underlying Interests

The Bank may issue linked Notes pursuant to this Prospectus and applicable product supplement and pricing supplement. A Note of this type provides that the principal amount payable at its maturity, and/or the amount of interest, if any, payable on an interest payment date, will be determined, in whole or in part, by reference to:

- (a) one or more equity, debt, or other securities or financial instruments including, but not limited to, the net asset value, market price or yield of such securities or financial instruments;
- (b) units, interests or other securities of one or more publicly offered investment funds, exchange-traded funds or portfolios including, but not limited to, the net asset value,

market price, dividends or distributions, or yield of such units, interests or other securities;

- (c) one or more currencies;
- (d) the value or price of any commodity or other asset;
- (e) one or more models, formulae or indices;
- (f) any other financial, economic, credit or other measure or instrument including, but not limited to, an exchange rate, interest rate, consumer price or other variable index or reference point, or the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance; or
- (g) baskets or combinations of any of the foregoing;

(each an "underlying interest" and, collectively, the "underlying interests").

A holder of a Note may receive an amount at maturity that is greater than, equal to or less than the face amount of such Note depending upon the value, level or price at the final valuation date prior to maturity of the underlying interests to which the return or interest payable on such Note is linked. That value, level or price may fluctuate over the term of the Note. The relevant product supplement and/or pricing supplement will include information about the relevant underlying interests and how amounts that may become payable will be determined by reference to such underlying interests. In addition, the relevant product supplement and/or pricing supplement will specify whether a Note will be exchangeable for cash, securities of an issuer other than the Bank or other property. For greater certainty, this Prospectus may not qualify distributions of any securities that are not linked Notes.

Notes linked to underlying interests carry significant risks not associated with conventional fixed rate or floating rate debt securities. These risks include the possibility that a holder may receive at maturity little or no principal, interest or other return or may receive payments at different times than expected. **Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement under which a Note is offered, the Bank does not guarantee the repayment of the principal amount of any Note, and does not guarantee that any return will be paid on any Note. Notes are not appropriate investments for persons who do not understand the risks associated with structured products or derivatives. Purchasers should read carefully the "Risk Factors" section in this Prospectus and in each of the applicable product supplement and/or pricing supplement.**

Information about the Notes in the Product Supplements and/or Pricing Supplements

One or more product supplements and/or a pricing supplement will describe the specific terms of the Notes being offered including, to the extent applicable:

- (a) the specific designation or title of the offered Notes and the series in which the Notes will be included;
- (b) any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the offered Notes;
- (c) the date or dates on which the Notes will be issued;
- (d) the stated maturity of the offered Notes;

- (e) the price at which the offered Notes will be sold, or how the price will be determined if Notes are offered on a non-fixed price basis, and the amount payable upon maturity of the Notes;
- (f) the type of consideration, if any, to be delivered to the holders of the Notes upon the discharge of the Notes of such series when due or upon redemption, if all or any portion of such consideration is to be other than money;
- (g) details with respect to each underlying interest to which the Notes are linked, including weights and the basis upon which the price, value or level of the underlying interest or any component thereof will be determined, and any special circumstances which could result in an adjustment, acceleration or delay in the manner in which such underlying interest is calculated;
- (h) if the underlying interest comprises more than one component or a basket of components that are determined from time to time by a manager designated in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement based on selection criteria set out in such supplement(s) (a "Notional Portfolio"), the weight of each component or the expected initial weight of each component to form part of the Notional Portfolio;
- (i) whether Notes may be optionally or mandatorily exchanged for equity securities of an issuer that is not affiliated with the Bank or for the cash value of the underlying interest;
- (j) when and how the principal and any premium or interest on the offered Notes will be payable and how each of the principal and any premium or interest on the Notes will be calculated;
- (k) any minimum amount or portion of the principal of the Notes that is "protected" or that the Bank agrees to repay;
- (l) any risk factors in addition to those described in this Prospectus that should be considered in connection with the purchase of Notes;
- (m) the commissions, fees or expenses payable to the Bank or any of its affiliates in connection with the issue, maintenance or administration of, or provision of services in respect of, the Notes;
- the market disruption events, extraordinary events and special circumstances which may trigger an acceleration or postponement of the maturity or amounts payable under the Notes;
- (o) if the Notes are to be issued under an indenture;
- (p) the identity of the registrar and transfer agent if different than the Fiscal Agent (as defined herein);
- (q) any special rights of the holders of the Notes upon the occurrence of specified events;
- (r) any additional obligations of the Bank with respect to the particular Notes offered or any changes to the Bank's obligations from the obligations described in this Prospectus;

- (s) whether the Notes described therein will be qualified investments for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, registered education savings plans, registered disability savings plans, deferred profit sharing plans, tax-free savings accounts and first home savings accounts, each within the meaning of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada);
- (t) any other specific Canadian income tax considerations that may apply to the Notes;
- (u) whether the Notes will be listed on a stock exchange or traded through a distributor on the Fundserv Inc. ("Fundserv") network or another quotation system;
- (v) whether the Notes are issued in certificated definitive form;
- (w) the terms and conditions upon which the Notes may be redeemed or repurchased, in whole or in part, at the option of the Bank;
- (x) details about any investment manager engaged to provide investment advisory services in respect of any underlying interests; and
- (y) any other terms of the Notes that pertain specifically to such Notes.

The Bank may set forth in a product supplement or pricing supplement variable terms which are not within the options and parameters set forth in this Prospectus.

The Bank may from time to time, without the consent of the existing holders of any Notes, create and issue further Notes of the same or a different series having the same terms and conditions as such Notes in all respects.

Currency Denomination

Unless specified otherwise in a product supplement or pricing supplement, the Notes will be denominated in Canadian dollars and all amounts payable on the Notes will be paid in Canadian dollars.

Maturity Date

Each Note will have a stated maturity date and may be subject to redemption or repayment before its stated maturity date, as specified in the applicable product supplement and pricing supplement.

Amounts Payable on Notes

Except as provided in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, amounts payable at or prior to maturity or on redemption or repayment of the Notes, variable return rates (including interest rates), variable return formulas and other variable terms of the Notes are subject to change by the Bank from time to time, but no change will affect any Note already issued, or as to which the Bank has accepted an offer to purchase, without the holder's consent. Such amounts and variable returns with respect to Notes offered by the Bank may differ depending upon a number of factors. The Bank may at any time concurrently offer Notes with similar variable terms but different amounts payable or variable return rates. The Bank may also concurrently offer Notes having different variable terms to different purchasers.

The variable return for each Note providing for a variable return will be calculated on the valuation date or valuation dates as specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, pursuant to

the formula or method of determination stated in the applicable Note and in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, until the amount payable on the payment dates and/or at maturity of the Note as specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, is paid or made available for payment. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, payments of variable returns will be made in arrears on each payment date specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement on which an instalment of variable return is due and payable at maturity. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, Scotia Capital, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, will be the Calculation Agent (as defined herein). Where the Bank or one of its affiliates is the Calculation Agent, it will discharge its duties in such capacity honestly and in good faith.

Record Dates

The record date for any entitlement due to be paid to the registered holder of the Notes in connection with payments under such Notes is one Business Day immediately preceding the date specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement for the payment of such entitlement, unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement or pricing supplement.

Redemption at the Option of the Bank

The Bank may redeem Notes at its option prior to their maturity date if a redemption right is specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement. The amount payable upon redemption of Notes will be determined as specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, the Bank must give written notice thereof to registered holders of the Notes to be redeemed at the Bank's option prior to the date of redemption. The Notes will not be subject to, or entitled to the benefit of, any sinking fund.

Repayment at the Option of the Holder

If an optional repayment date is specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement for particular Notes, registered holders of such Notes may require the Bank to repay those Notes prior to their maturity date on any optional repayment date in whole or, from time to time, in part in increments of \$100 or any other integral multiple of an authorized denomination specified in the applicable pricing supplement (provided that any remaining principal amount thereof is at least \$100 or other minimum authorized denomination applicable thereto), at the repayment price or prices specified in the product supplement or pricing supplement, together with unpaid interest accrued thereon to the date of repayment, if any, as specified in the product supplement or pricing supplement. A registered holder's exercise of any repayment option will be irrevocable.

For any Note to be repaid, the Fiscal Agent must receive notice, at the address specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, not more than 60 days or less than 30 days prior to the date of repayment, unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement, specifying the particular Notes to be repaid and, in the case of a book-entry Note, repayment instructions from the applicable beneficial owner to the depository and forwarded by the depository. Only the depository may exercise the repayment option in respect of Notes in book-entry Notes repaid must instruct the participant through which they own their interest to direct the depository to exercise the repayment option on their behalf by forwarding the repayment instructions to the Fiscal Agent. In order to ensure that these instructions are received by the Fiscal Agent on a particular day, the applicable beneficial owner must instruct the participant through which it owns its interest before that participant's deadline for accepting instructions for that day. Different firms may have different deadlines for accepting instructions from their customers. Accordingly, beneficial owners should consult with the participant through which they hold their

beneficial interest in Notes for the respective deadlines. In addition, at the time repayment instructions are given, each beneficial owner must cause the participant through which it owns its interest to transfer the beneficial owner's interest in the Notes in book-entry form, on the depository's records, to the Fiscal Agent. See "Book-Entry Only Notes".

Purchase of Notes by the Bank

The Bank may at any time purchase or cause its affiliates to purchase Notes at any price or prices in the open market or otherwise, but is under no obligation to do so, and reserves the right to elect not to do so at any time in the future, in its sole and absolute discretion, without prior notice. Notes so purchased may, at the discretion of the Bank or its affiliates, be held, resold or surrendered for cancellation.

Estimated Value of the Notes

The Notes are debt securities, the return on which is linked to the performance of the underlying interests. In order to satisfy its payment obligations under the Notes, the Bank may choose to enter into certain hedging arrangements (which may include call options, put options or other derivatives) on the issue date with Scotia Capital or one of the Bank's other subsidiaries, or with a third party, but is under no obligation to do so. The terms of any such hedging arrangements would, if entered into, take into account a number of factors, including the creditworthiness of the Bank, interest rate movements, the volatility of the underlying interests, and the tenor of the Notes.

The estimated initial value of the Notes as shown in the applicable pricing supplement will be determined on the pricing date of the Notes, does not represent a minimum price at which the Bank, Scotia Capital or any of the Bank's affiliates would be willing to purchase the Notes in any secondary market (if any exists) at any time, and is not an indication of actual profit to the Bank or any of its affiliates. If an investor attempts to sell the Notes prior to their maturity date, the market value of the Notes may be lower than the price paid for them and the estimated value. This is due to, among other things, changes in the price, level or value of the underlying interests and the inclusion in the issue price of the fees and expenses payable to the Investment Dealers and the estimated costs relating to any hedging activities the Bank may decide to undertake in respect of the Notes.

The estimated value of the financial instrument components (plus the costs incurred by the Bank in connection with the issuance of the Notes) that combined would replicate the return on the Notes is equal to the estimated value of the Notes indicated in the applicable pricing supplement. The Bank's estimated value of the Notes is based on a variety of assumptions, including expectations as to dividends, distributions, interest rates and volatility, the Bank's internal funding rates (which may differ from the market rates for the Bank's conventional debt securities), and the expected term of the Notes. These assumptions are based on certain forecasts about future events, which may prove to be incorrect. Other entities may value the Notes or similar securities at a price that is significantly different than the Bank. The value of the Notes at any time after the date of the applicable pricing supplement will vary based on many factors, including changes in market conditions, and cannot be predicted by the Bank. As a result, the actual value an investor would receive if they sold the Notes in any secondary market should be expected to differ materially from the estimated value of Notes determined on the pricing date of the Notes. The Investment Dealers participate in due diligence activities performed by the Investment Dealers in respect of the offering, but, with the exception of Scotia Capital, do not participate in the structuring and pricing of the offering or the calculation of, or review the calculation of, the initial estimated value of the Notes.

The issue price of the Notes also reflects the fees and expenses payable to the Investment Dealers and the Bank's expected profit (which may or may not be realized) based on an estimate of costs the Bank may incur in creating, issuing, maintaining and potentially hedging its obligations under the Notes. These

factors result in the estimated value for the Notes on the date of the applicable pricing supplement being less than the issue price of the Notes.

The Bank has adopted written policies and procedures for determining the estimated initial value of the Notes which include: (i) the methodologies used for valuing each type of component embedded in the Notes, (ii) the methods by which the Bank will review and test valuation to assess the quality of the prices obtained as well as the general functioning of the valuation process, and (iii) conflicts of interest.

Book-Entry Only Notes

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, upon issuance, the Notes will be issued in "book-entry only" form and will be represented by a fully registered global note, as may be amended or amended and restated from time to time ("Global Note"). Notes issued in "book-entry only" form must be purchased, transferred or redeemed through participants ("CDS Participants") in the depository service of CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. ("CDS") or its nominee. Each of the Investment Dealers will be a CDS Participant or will have arrangements with a CDS Participant. On the closing of a "book-entry only" offering, the Bank may cause a global certificate or certificates representing the aggregate number of Notes subscribed for under such offering to be delivered to, and registered in the name of, CDS. Except as described below, no purchaser of Notes will be entitled to a certificate or other instrument from the Bank or CDS evidencing that purchaser's ownership thereof, and no purchaser will be shown on the records maintained by CDS except through a book-entry account of a CDS Participant acting on behalf of such purchaser. Each purchaser of Notes will receive a customer confirmation of purchase from the registered dealer from which the Notes are purchased in accordance with the practices and procedures of that registered dealer. The practices of registered dealers may vary, but, generally, customer confirmations are issued promptly after execution of a customer order. CDS will be responsible for establishing and maintaining book-entry accounts for the CDS Participants having interests in the Notes. Reference in this Prospectus to a holder of Notes means, unless the context otherwise requires, the owner of the beneficial interest in the Notes.

If the depository for any of the Notes represented by a Global Note is at any time unwilling or unable to continue to properly discharge its responsibilities as depository, and a successor depository is not appointed by the Bank within 90 days, the Bank will issue Notes in definitive form in exchange for the Global Note that had been held by the depository.

In addition, the Bank may at any time and in its sole discretion decide not to have any of the Notes represented by one or more Global Notes. If the Bank makes that decision, the Bank will issue Notes in definitive form in exchange for all of the Global Notes representing the Notes.

Except in certain circumstances outlined in this Prospectus or the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, beneficial owners of the Notes will not be entitled to have any portions of such Notes registered in their name, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of the Notes in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of a Global Note.

Any Notes issued in definitive form in exchange for a Global Note will be registered in the name or names that the depository gives to the Bank or its agent, as the case may be. It is expected that the depository's instructions will be based upon directions received by the depository from CDS Participants with respect to ownership of beneficial interests in the Global Note that had been held by the depository.

The text of any Notes issued in definitive form will contain such provisions as the Bank may deem necessary or advisable. The Bank will keep or cause to be kept a register in which will be recorded registrations and transfers of Notes in definitive form if issued. Such register will be kept at the offices of the Bank, or at such other offices notified by the Bank to holders of Notes.

No transfer of a definitive Note will be valid unless made at such offices upon surrender of the certificate in definitive form for cancellation with a written instrument of transfer in form and as to execution satisfactory to the Bank or its agent, and upon compliance with such reasonable conditions as may be required by the Bank or its agent and with any requirement imposed by law, and entered on the register.

Payments on a definitive Note will be made by cheque mailed to the applicable registered holder at the address of the holder appearing in the aforementioned register in which registrations and transfers of Notes are to be recorded or, if requested in writing by the holder at least 15 days before the date of the payment and agreed to by the Bank, by electronic funds transfer to a bank account nominated by the holder with a bank in Canada. Payment under any definitive Note is conditional upon the holder first delivering the Note to the Bank, who reserves the right, in the case of payment of any amounts prior to the maturity date of the Note, to mark on the Note that the applicable amount has been paid in full or, in the case of payment of all amounts under the Note in full at any time, to retain the Note and mark the Note as cancelled.

Transfer, Conversion or Redemption of Notes

Transfers of ownership, conversions or redemptions of Notes will be effected through records maintained by CDS for such Notes with respect to interests of CDS Participants, and on the records of CDS Participants with respect to interests of persons other than CDS Participants. CDS will be responsible for establishing and maintaining book-entry accounts for the CDS Participants having interests in the Notes. Holders of the Notes who desire to purchase, sell or otherwise transfer ownership of, or other interests in, the Notes may do so only through CDS Participants.

The ability of a holder to pledge a Note or otherwise take action with respect to such holder's interest in a Note (other than through a CDS Participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate.

Payments and Notices

Payments of principal, redemption price, if any, premium, if any, and interest, if any, as applicable, on each Note will be made by the Bank to CDS, as the case may be, as the registered holder of the Note and the Bank understands that such payments will be credited by CDS in the appropriate amounts to the relevant CDS Participants as shown on the records of CDS. Payments to holders of Notes of amounts so credited will be the responsibility of the CDS Participants.

As long as CDS is the registered holder of the Notes, CDS will be considered the sole owner of the Notes for the purposes of receiving notices or payments on the Notes. In such circumstances, the responsibility and liability of the Bank in respect of notices or payments on the Notes is limited to giving or making payment of any principal, redemption price, if any, premium, if any, and interest, if any, due on the Notes to CDS.

Each holder of a Note must rely on the procedures of CDS and, if such holder is not a CDS Participant, on the procedures of the CDS Participant through which such holder owns its interest, to exercise any rights with respect to the Notes. The Bank understands that under existing policies of CDS and industry practices, if the Bank requests any action of holders of the Notes or if a holder of the Notes desires to give any notice or take any action which a registered holder is entitled to give or take with respect to the Notes, CDS would authorize the CDS Participant acting on behalf of the holder to give such notice or to take such action, in accordance with the procedures established by CDS or agreed to from time to time by the Bank, any trustee identified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement and CDS. Any holder of a Note that is not a CDS Participant must rely on the contractual arrangement it has directly, or indirectly through its financial intermediary, with a CDS Participant to give such notice or take such action.

None of the Bank, the Investment Dealers and any trustee identified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement will have any liability or responsibility for: (i) records maintained by CDS relating to beneficial ownership interest in the Notes held by CDS or the book-entry accounts maintained by CDS; (ii) maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to any such beneficial ownership interest; or (iii) any advice or representation made by or with respect to CDS and contained herein or in any trust indenture with respect to the rules and regulations of CDS or at the direction of the CDS Participants.

Deferred Payment

Under the *Criminal Code* (Canada), a lender is prohibited from entering into an agreement or arrangement to receive interest at an effective annual rate of interest, calculated in accordance with generally accepted actuarial practices and principles, exceeding 60% of the credit advanced under the agreement or arrangement. The Bank will not, to the extent permitted by law, voluntarily claim the benefits of any laws concerning usurious rates of interest. If not permitted by law to do so, when any payment is to be made by the Bank to a holder of the Notes, payment of a portion of such amount may be deferred to ensure compliance with such laws.

Notices to Holders of the Notes

All notices to the holders of the Notes will be validly given if (i) given through CDS to CDS participants, (ii) published once in a widely circulated edition of a French language Québec newspaper and in the national edition of a widely circulated edition of an English language Canadian newspaper, or (iii) communicated by mail, electronic and/or any other means.

Modification and Waiver

The Global Note of any series of Notes and the terms of the Notes may be amended without the consent of the holders of such series of Notes by agreement between the Bank and each of the applicable Investment Dealers, as the case may be to (i) correct any error or omission and cure any ambiguity in the Notes, or correct, cure, rectify or supplement any provision in the Notes which may be defective or inconsistent or conflict with any other provision in the Notes; (ii) add, amend, correct or supplement any provision in the Notes which may become incorrect or inaccurate as a result of the passage of time, including without limitation changes in the titles of officers of the Bank referred to in the Notes and changes in titles of government authorities or legislation, or provisions of legislation, referred to in the Notes; or (iii) bring the Notes into conformity with applicable laws, rules and policies applicable to the Notes, or (iv) make any other provisions with respect to matters arising under, based upon or relating to the Notes, if, in the reasonable opinion of the Bank and each of such Investment Dealers, the amendment would not materially and adversely affect the interests of such holders or if the amendment is otherwise permitted to be made by the Calculation Agent. In all other cases, the terms of the Notes of a series outstanding may be amended by the Bank if the Bank proposes the amendment and the amendment is approved by a resolution passed by holders representing not less than 66²/₃% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of such series represented at a meeting convened for the purpose of considering the resolution. The quorum for a meeting of holders of Notes is at least two holders represented in person or by proxy holding at least 10% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of a series. If a quorum is not present at a meeting within 30 minutes after the time fixed for the meeting, the meeting will be adjourned to another day, not less than 10 days or more than 21 days later, selected by the Bank. The holders present in person or by proxy at the adjourned meeting will constitute a quorum. Each holder is entitled to one vote per Note of a series held by such holder for the purposes of voting at meetings convened to consider a resolution. The Notes do not carry the right to vote in any other circumstances.

The holders of not less than a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of any series may waive past defaults under the Notes and waive compliance by the Bank with certain provisions of the Notes, except as described under "Events of Default".

Events of Default

Each of the following will constitute an event of default (an "Event of Default") with respect to Notes of any series (i) default in the payment of any amounts payable to purchasers on any Note of that series when due, if such default is not remedied on or before the fifth Business Day after notice of such default is given to the Bank; and (ii) if the Bank becomes insolvent or bankrupt or resolves to wind-up or liquidate or is ordered to be wound-up or liquidated.

The *Winding-up and Restructuring Act* (Canada) provides that the Bank is deemed insolvent if, among other things, a creditor has served a written demand on the Bank to pay an amount due and the Bank has neglected to pay the sum for 60 days.

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing for Notes of any series, the holders of not less than 25% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of that series may declare all amounts, or any lesser amount provided for in the Notes of that series, to be immediately due and payable. At any time after the holders have made such a declaration of acceleration with respect to the Notes of any series but before a judgment or decree for payment of money due has been obtained, the holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of that series may rescind any such declaration of acceleration and its consequences, provided that all payments due, other than those due as a result of acceleration, have been made and all Events of Default with respect to the Notes of that series, other than the non-payment of the principal of the Notes of that series which has become due solely by such declaration of acceleration, have been remedied or waived.

The holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of any series may waive an Event of Default, on behalf of the holders of all the Notes of such series, except a default in the payment of any amounts due and payable under the Notes of such series.

The holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes of any series may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy or exercising any rights with respect to the Notes, provided that such direction does not conflict with any applicable law or the Notes certificate.

The Notes will not have the benefit of any cross-default provisions with other indebtedness of the Bank.

Calculation Agent

Scotia Capital has been appointed as the registrar, transfer agent and fiscal agent (the "Fiscal Agent") and as the calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent") in respect of the Notes. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement relating to specific Notes to be offered and sold, Notes will be issued pursuant to and have the benefit of a fiscal agency and calculation agency agreement made as of March 4, 2024 as may be amended or amended and restated or supplemented from time to time, between the Bank and Scotia Capital (the "Fiscal Agency and Calculation Agency Agreement"). The Bank may from time to time, without the consent of holders of Notes, appoint a Fiscal Agent and/or a Calculation Agent other than or in addition to Scotia Capital in respect of any particular series of Notes and, in such case, the Bank will notify holders of the affected Notes within a reasonable time of such appointment.

Among other things, the Fiscal Agency and Calculation Agency Agreement sets out the procedures to be followed in connection with the calculation of amounts payable in respect of the Notes, the payment by the Bank of amounts in respect of the Notes, notification to noteholders, the holding of noteholder meetings and other administrative matters in respect of the Notes.

A copy of the Fiscal Agency and Calculation Agency Agreement is available electronically under the Bank's profile at www.sedarplus.ca.

See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of potential conflicts of interest between purchasers of Notes and the Calculation Agent.

Independent Calculation Experts

If, in connection with a Special Circumstance or Extraordinary Event, as defined in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, a determination contemplated to be made by the Calculation Agent in respect of any Notes involves the application of material discretion as determined by the Calculation Agent, acting reasonably, and is not based on information or calculation methodologies compiled, utilized or provided by, or derived from, independent third party sources (including hedge counterparties), the Bank will appoint at its cost an independent calculation expert (an "Independent Calculation Expert") to confirm such determination at the times, in the manner and for the purposes described in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement. Independent Calculation Experts will be independent and will be active participants in significant markets in respect of which determinations are required to be made. For the purposes hereof, "independent" means that the expert is not the Bank or an "insider", "associate" or "affiliate" of the Bank as such terms are defined in the Securities Act (Ontario), as amended. Independent Calculation Experts will act as independent experts and will not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, holders of Notes or the Bank. Determinations made by such Independent Calculation Experts will (except in the case of manifest error) be final and binding on the Bank, the Calculation Agent and the holders of Notes. Independent Calculation Experts will not be responsible for good faith errors or omissions in making any such determinations. Independent Calculation Experts may, acting honestly and reasonably at all times, with the Bank's consent delegate any of their obligations and functions to another independent person as they deem appropriate.

If the Independent Calculation Expert appointed by the Bank to review and confirm a determination made by the Calculation Agent disagrees with the reasonableness of the discretionary aspects of the Calculation Agent's determination, the Bank will appoint at its cost two additional Independent Calculation Experts. Each of the three Independent Calculation Experts will repeat the determination having regard to the basis, factors and considerations properly applicable to the initial determination by the Calculation Agent, and the average of such determination by the Independent Calculation Experts will be final and binding on the Bank, the Calculation Agent and the holders of Notes.

No Deduction or Withholding

The Bank will pay any amounts to be paid by it on the Notes without deduction or withholding for, or on account of, any and all present or future income, stamp and other taxes, levies, imposts, duties, charges, fees, deductions or withholdings now or hereafter imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or on behalf of Canada or any Canadian political subdivision or authority that has the power to tax, unless the deduction or withholding is required by law or by the interpretation or administration thereof by the relevant governmental authority.

Costs and Fees

If specified in the relevant pricing supplement, certain costs, fees, expenses and other charges may be applied in determining the amount payable on the Notes. If applicable, such amounts will reduce the amount payable in respect of the Notes.

Governing Law

Unless otherwise specified in a product supplement or a pricing supplement, the Notes will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein.

Earnings Coverage

The following earnings coverage ratios do not reflect the issuance of Notes under this Prospectus.

The consolidated financial ratios for the Bank set forth in the table below are calculated for the 12 months ended October 31, 2023 and January 31, 2024:

Twelve months ended	October 31, 2023 ¹	January 31, 2024
Grossed up dividend coverage on Preferred Shares and other equity instruments	17.57	18.33
Interest coverage on subordinated indebtedness	21.30	19.84
Grossed up dividend and interest coverage on preferred shares, other equity instruments and subordinated indebtedness	9.88	9.78

The Bank's dividend requirements on all of its outstanding Preferred Shares and other equity instruments: (i) adjusted to a before-tax equivalent using an effective income tax rate of 22.97%, amounted to \$544 million for the 12 months ended October 31, 2023, and (ii) adjusted to a before-tax equivalent using an effective income tax rate of 17.29%, amounted to \$515 million for the 12 months ended January 31, 2024. The Bank's interest requirements for subordinated indebtedness amounted to (i) \$471 million for the 12 months ended October 31, 2023, and (ii) \$501 million for the 12 months ended January 31, 2024. The Bank's earnings before interest on subordinated indebtedness and income tax for (i) the 12 months ended October 31, 2023 were \$10,030 million after deducting non-controlling interest, and (ii) for the 12 months ended January 31, 2024 were \$9,941 million after deducting non-controlling interest.

In calculating the dividend and interest coverages, foreign currency amounts have been converted to Canadian dollars. All amounts appearing under this heading "Earnings Coverage" are derived from financial information which is unaudited and prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRS).

¹ On November 1, 2023, the Bank adopted IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4, the previous accounting standard for insurance contracts. As required under the new accounting standard, the Bank has restated the October 31, 2023 comparative year results from the transition date of November 1, 2022. The ratios presented here have been recalculated using the restated results.

Plan of Distribution

The Notes will be offered severally by one or more of the Investment Dealers. Under the Dealer Agreement, the Notes may be purchased or offered at various times by any of the Investment Dealers, as agent, dealer, underwriter or principal at prices and commissions to be agreed upon, for sale to the public at prices to be negotiated with purchasers. Sale prices may vary during the distribution period and between purchasers. The Bank may also offer the Notes to purchasers directly, pursuant to applicable law, at prices and terms to be negotiated. At the same time that an Investment Dealer or Investment Dealers offers the Notes, the Bank may issue other debt securities.

The Bank's wholly-owned subsidiary, Scotia Capital, is one of the Investment Dealers. **The Bank is a related and connected issuer of Scotia Capital within the meaning of applicable securities legislation in connection with any offering of Notes hereunder**. Scotia Capital is expected to be involved in any decision to distribute Notes hereunder and in determining the terms of each particular offering of Notes. The terms of an offering of Notes will be settled by Scotia Capital as agent of the Bank. The pricing supplement applicable to each offering of Notes will identify the specific Investment Dealers, if any, offering the Notes and will specify at least one Investment Dealer, other than Scotia Capital, that will have participated in the due diligence performed in respect of, but may not have participated in the structuring and pricing of, the offering of such Notes.

The Bank or Scotia Capital, as agent on behalf of the Bank, may enter into arrangements to hedge the Bank's risks associated with its obligations under the Notes. The Bank may agree that Scotia Capital may retain all or a portion of any profits, and may be required to compensate the Bank for all or a portion of any losses, resulting from such hedging arrangements. In addition, Scotia Capital is the Calculation Agent and the Fiscal Agent in respect of the Notes. Scotia Capital may also undertake to facilitate a secondary market for the Notes, if so specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, including by purchasing Notes as principal and reselling such acquired Notes. Scotia Capital may receive a commission for acting as an Investment Dealer in connection with the distribution of Notes hereunder and may earn a profit in connection with the acquisition or disposition of Notes acting as principal. In addition, Scotia Capital may receive a structuring fee in connection with structuring particular Notes, such fee to be specified in the applicable product supplement.

In connection with the offering of Notes, the Investment Dealers may over-allot or effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Notes at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The Bank may withdraw, cancel or modify any offering of Notes without notice and may reject orders in whole or in part (whether placed directly by the Bank or through the Investment Dealers). Each Investment Dealer may, in its discretion reasonably exercised, reject in whole or in part any order to purchase Notes received by it. If for any reason the closing of an offering of Notes does not occur, all subscription funds will be returned.

The Investment Dealers or their affiliates may solicit offers to purchase or sell the Notes outside Canada only with the consent of the Bank and in accordance with applicable law and only where the Notes may lawfully be sold on a basis exempt from the prospectus and registration requirements or similar requirements of any such jurisdiction. No action has been taken or will be taken in any jurisdiction other than Canada that would permit a public offering of the Notes, or the possession, circulation or distribution of any prospectus or any other material relating to the Bank or the Notes in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.

The Notes are not, and will not be, registered under the U.S. Securities Act, and the Investment Dealers have agreed not to (1) buy or offer to buy, (2) sell or offer to sell, or (3) solicit any offer to buy any Notes

as part of any distribution hereunder in the United States, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. Person, except pursuant to exemptions from the U.S. Securities Act.

Secondary Market for Notes

Unless otherwise indicated in a product supplement or a pricing supplement, the Notes will not be listed on any securities exchange or marketplace.

Each of the Investment Dealers may from time to time purchase and sell Notes in the secondary market, but no Investment Dealer is obligated to do so, and there is no assurance that there will be a secondary market for the Notes or liquidity in the secondary market if one develops. From time to time, each of the Investment Dealers may make a market in the Notes, but the Investment Dealers are not obligated to do so and may discontinue any market-making activity at any time and without notice to holders.

Fundserv

If specified in the applicable pricing supplement, Notes may be purchased through dealers and other firms that facilitate purchase and related settlement through a clearing and settlement service operated by Fundserv. The applicable pricing supplement will set forth the applicable Fundserv codes for the Notes. Funds in respect of all subscriptions for the Notes shall be payable at the time of subscription. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement, no interest will be payable on such funds prior to the issue date of the Notes. If for any reason the closing of an offering of Notes does not occur, all subscription funds will be returned forthwith to the subscriber's financial advisor using the Fundserv network. Notes issued will be represented by one or more Global Notes that will be deposited with a depository. If Notes are purchased from a distributor on the Fundserv network (i.e., the members of Scotia Capital's distribution network that participate in the offering as "selling firms" and not as dealers under the base shelf prospectus), a holder will have an indirect beneficial interest in the applicable Global Note. That beneficial interest will be recorded in the book-entry system of the depository as being owned by a specific market intermediary, which in turn will record in its books the respective beneficial interests in the Notes purchased from a distributor on the Fundserv network.

If specified in the applicable pricing supplement, resales of Notes may be permitted through a distributor on the Fundserv network. In such case, Notes may be sold prior to the maturity date using the "redemption" procedures of the Fundserv network commencing the day after the issue date. Such sales will be subject to certain procedures, requirements and limitations relating to use of the Fundserv network. Any other sale of Notes will not be recognized. If a holder of Notes wishes to sell all or a part of its holdings, it should consult with its dealer or financial advisor in advance in order to understand the timing and other procedures, requirements and limitations of selling through a distributor on the Fundserv network. To give effect to a sale of Notes through a distributor on the Fundserv network, a noteholder's dealer or financial advisor must initiate an irrevocable request to "redeem" the applicable Notes in accordance with the then established procedures of Fundserv. The use of the Fundserv network to facilitate redemption procedures for this purpose is a matter of convenience to give effect to a sale transaction within Fundserv's existing systems and procedures. Despite this terminology, Notes will not be "redeemed", but rather will be sold in the secondary market through these procedures to Scotia Capital. In turn, Scotia Capital will be able, in its discretion, to resell such Notes to other third parties at negotiated prices or to hold them for its own account. A holder should be aware that, from time to time, the "redemption" procedures of the Fundserv network required to give effect to any resale of Notes may be suspended for any reason without notice, thus effectively preventing a holder of Notes from selling. If a holder requires liquidity, then it should carefully consider this possibility before purchasing Notes.

Generally, to be effective on a business day, a redemption request will need to be initiated by 1:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on that business day (or such other time as may be established by Fundserv). Any request received after such time will be deemed to be a request sent and received on the next following business day.

Scotia Capital, in its capacity as Calculation Agent, will act as the "fund sponsor" for the purpose of calculating and posting daily the "net asset value" in relation to Notes purchased from a distributor on the Fundserv network. The sale price will represent the price at which Scotia Capital may offer to purchase Notes from holders in connection with a secondary market transaction. Such price will be determined as of the close of business on the applicable business day. A sale of a Note will be effected at a sale price equal to (i) the "net asset value" at the close of business on the business day on which the order is placed by Scotia Capital (in its capacity as Calculation Agent) using the Fundserv network, on the following business day, minus (ii) any applicable early trading or other charges as specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Accordingly, a holder will not be able to negotiate a sale price for Notes.

There is no guarantee that the sale price for any day will be the highest possible price available in any secondary market for the Notes, but it will represent a bid price generally available to holders, including clients of Scotia Capital, as at the relevant close of business. The "net asset value" of a Note at any time will generally depend on, among other things, (a) how much the values, levels or prices of the underlying interests have risen or fallen since the date of issue of the Notes, (b) the principal amount of the Note, if any, that is guaranteed to be payable on the maturity date, (c) a number of other interrelated factors including, without limitation, volatility in the values, levels or prices of the underlying interests, the level of interest rates in the applicable markets, dividend yields on any of the securities, if any, comprising the underlying interest, and the maturity date, and (d) if applicable, factors related to the early redemption of the Notes, such as the redemption price or date. The relationship among these factors is complex and may also be influenced by various political, economic and other factors that can affect the trading price of a Notes. The resale price, if any, of a holder's Notes could be less than the principal amount of such Notes.

A holder may wish to consult its investment advisor on whether it would be more favourable in the circumstances at any time to sell Notes (assuming the availability of a secondary market) or hold Notes until the maturity date.

Information regarding Fundserv can be found at www.fundserv.com. A holder should consult with its financial advisor for further information on Fundserv procedures.

Risk Factors

An investment in Notes is subject to various risks including those risks inherent in conducting the business of a diversified financial institution. Before deciding whether to invest in Notes, purchasers should consider carefully the risks set out herein and incorporated by reference in this Prospectus (including subsequently filed documents incorporated by reference) and, if applicable, those described in the product supplement and pricing supplement relating to a specific offering of Notes. Prospective purchasers should consider the categories of risks identified and discussed in the Annual Information Form, the 2023 Annual MD&A and the Q1 MD&A, each of which is incorporated herein by reference, including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, information technology and cybersecurity risk, compliance risk, money laundering, terrorist financing and sanctions risk, environmental, social and governance risk, data risk, model risk, reputational risk and strategic risk.

Risks Relating to Underlying Interests

The principal amount of a Note payable at or before maturity and any variable return or other payment will be determined, in whole or in part, by reference to one or more underlying interests. Accordingly,

certain risk factors applicable to a direct or indirect investment in the underlying interests, the constituent securities of an underlying interest or an index that is tracked by such underlying interest, are also applicable to an investment in Notes. Investors should consider the risks described in the product supplement and pricing supplement relating to a specific offering of Notes for more information on risks that may be applicable to an underlying interest and are urged to consult publicly available sources to conduct their own independent investigation of such risks.

Principal at Risk; Non-Conventional Debt Securities

The Notes offered under this Prospectus may not be conventional notes or debt securities. If specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, Notes may provide no assurance that any of the principal amount of the Notes will be paid at or before maturity, other than the minimum principal repayment specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement. In addition, the Notes may not provide holders with a return or income stream prior to maturity calculated by reference to a fixed or floating rate of interest determinable prior to maturity. An investment in the Notes, unlike traditional debt obligations of Canadian chartered banks, may be uncertain in that the Notes could produce no return on a holder's original investment or the Bank may not repay any principal amount at or before maturity, other than the minimum principal repayment specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Prospective purchasers are directed to the applicable product supplement and pricing supplement for the specific terms of the relevant Notes, including the risk factors set out therein.

Independent Investigation Required

The Bank and the Investment Dealers do not intend to verify independently the accuracy or completeness of any information relating to any underlying interests, including the calculation, maintenance or publication of any underlying interests. A prospective purchaser should undertake such independent investigation of the underlying interests as the investor considers necessary in order to make an informed decision as to the merits of an investment in the Notes.

Market for Notes

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement, there may be no market through which the Notes may be sold and holders may not be able to sell the Notes. This may affect the pricing of the Notes in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the securities, and the extent of issuer regulation.

Fees and Transaction Costs

Expenses and transaction costs may reduce a holder's return on the Notes.

Risks Relating to Unsecured Nature of the Notes

The Notes will not be secured by any of the assets of the Bank. Therefore, holders of secured indebtedness of the Bank would have a claim on the assets securing such indebtedness that ranks prior to a holder of Notes' claim on such assets and would have a claim that ranks *pari passu* with the claim of holders of Notes on such other assets to the extent that such security did not satisfy such secured indebtedness.

Redemption May Adversely Affect Return on the Notes

If Notes are redeemable or are otherwise subject to any mandatory redemption or repayment by the Bank, such Notes may be redeemed or repaid at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low. In such case, a holder generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds so as to

realize an expected return at such time comparable to the return that might have been realized had the Notes not been redeemed or repaid at such time.

Risks Relating to Notes Denominated in Foreign Currencies

Notes denominated or payable in foreign currencies or in respect of which there is exposure to currency fluctuations may entail significant risks. These risks include the possibility of significant fluctuations in the foreign currency markets, the imposition or modification of foreign exchange controls and potential illiquidity in the secondary markets. These risks will vary depending upon the currency or currencies involved and will be more fully described in the applicable pricing supplement.

Conflicts of Interest

The Bank and its affiliates may, from time to time, in the course of their normal business operations, hold interests linked to the underlying interests or hold securities of, provide research reports and investment advice regarding, extend credit to or enter into other business dealings with (including acting as an advisor on corporate transactions either directly or indirectly through affiliates who provide such services in their normal course of business) issuers of underlying interests that are securities or persons affiliated, associated or in a business relationship with such issuers, including under hedging arrangements relating to the Notes. Each of the Bank and its affiliates has agreed that all such actions taken by it shall be taken based on normal commercial criteria in the particular circumstances, which may include payment of trailer fees. Such actions may not take into account the effect, if any, of such actions on the amount of variable return that may be payable on the Notes. Scotia Capital is the Calculation Agent and may have economic interests adverse to those of holders of Notes, including with respect to certain determinations that the Calculation Agent must make with respect to the Notes. Advisors at Scotia Capital or advisors at other dealers may request and may negotiate the terms of certain Notes on behalf of their clients, including any fees payable to such advisors under the Notes, which may pose a potential conflict of interest between the advisors and their clients.

Changes in Laws and Regulations

Changes in laws and regulations, in particular income tax and securities laws, including how they are interpreted and enforced in applicable jurisdictions, could have an adverse impact on holders of Notes or on the value of the Notes.

No Ownership of Underlying Interests

The Notes will not entitle a holder thereof to any direct or indirect ownership or entitlement to any underlying interests, except as specified in the applicable product supplement or pricing supplement. A holder will not be entitled to the rights and benefits of a holder of an underlying interest, including any right to receive any distributions or dividends or to vote at or attend any meetings of holders of underlying interests that are securities.

Pledging

The ability of a holder of Notes to pledge Notes or otherwise take action with respect to such holder's interest in such Notes (other than through a CDS Participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate.

Credit Risk

The obligation to make payments to holders of Notes is an obligation of the Bank. Accordingly, the likelihood that such holders will receive payments owing to them in connection with the Notes will be dependent upon the financial health and creditworthiness of the Bank.

No Deposit Insurance

The Notes will not constitute deposits that are insured under the *Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act* (Canada) (the "CDIC Act") or any other deposit insurance regime designed to ensure the payment of all or a portion of a deposit upon the insolvency of the deposit taking financial institution. Therefore, a holder will not be entitled to Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation protection.

Bail-in Regulation

On June 22, 2016, legislation came into force amending the *Bank Act* (Canada) (the "Bank Act") and the CDIC Act and certain other federal statutes pertaining to banks to create a bail-in regime for Canada's domestic systemically important banks, which include the Bank. On April 18, 2018, the Government of Canada published regulations under the CDIC Act and the Bank Act providing the final details of the conversion, issuance and compensation regimes for bail-in instruments issued by domestic systemically important banks, including the Bank (collectively, the "Bail-In Regulations"). The Bail-In Regulations came into force on September 23, 2018. Pursuant to the CDIC Act, in circumstances where the Superintendent of Financial Institutions has determined that the Bank has ceased, or is about to cease, to be viable, the Governor in Council may, upon a recommendation of the Minister of Finance that they are of the opinion that it is in the public interest to do so, grant an order directing the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation to convert all or a portion of certain shares and liabilities of the Bank into common shares of the Bank (a "Bail-In Conversion").

The Bail-In Regulations prescribe the types of shares and liabilities that will be subject to a Bail-In Conversion. In general, any senior debt with an initial or amended term to maturity (including explicit or embedded options) greater than 400 days, that is unsecured or only partially secured and has been assigned a Committee on Uniform Security Identification Procedures (CUSIP) number, International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) or other similar designation that identifies a specific security in order to facilitate its trading and settlement will be subject to a Bail-In Conversion. Shares, other than common shares, and subordinated debt will also be subject to a Bail-In Conversion, unless they are nonviability contingent capital instruments. However, certain other debt obligations of the Bank such as structured notes, covered bonds and certain derivatives will not be subject to a Bail-In Conversion. Subject to certain exceptions, a "structured note" is defined in the Bail-In Regulations as a debt obligation that: (a) specifies that the obligation's stated term to maturity, or a payment to be made by its issuer, is determined in whole or in part by reference to an index or reference point, including (i) the performance or value of an entity or asset, (ii) the market price of a security, commodity, investment fund or financial instrument, (iii) an interest rate, and (iv) the exchange rate between two currencies; or (b) contains any other type of embedded derivative or similar feature. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement, it is anticipated that the terms of the Notes will cause them to be "structured notes" as defined in the Bail-In Regulations. Accordingly, it is not expected that any Notes will be issued with terms that would cause them to be subject to a Bail-In Conversion.

Additionally, the bail-in regime described above may adversely affect the Bank's cost of funding.

For a description of Canadian bank resolution powers and the consequent risk factors attaching to the Notes, reference is made to the disclosure set out under "Description of the Bank's Business – Bank

Recapitalization (Bail-in) Regime" contained in the Annual Information Form, which disclosure is hereby incorporated by reference.

Canadian Investor Protection Fund

There is no assurance that an investment in the Notes will be eligible for protection under the Canadian Investor Protection Fund. Prospective purchasers should consult a financial advisor for advice as to whether an investment in Notes is eligible for protection in light of such prospective purchaser's particular circumstances.

Payments May Be Deferred or Withheld

Federal laws of Canada preclude the charging of interest or other amounts for the advancing of credit at effective rates in excess of 60% per annum. See "Description of the Notes – Deferred Payment". If not permitted by law to do so, when any payment is to be made by the Bank to a holder of the Notes, payment of a portion of such amount may be deferred to ensure compliance with such laws.

Use of Proceeds

Unless otherwise specified in a product supplement or pricing supplement, the net proceeds to the Bank from the sale of Notes will be added to the general funds of the Bank and utilized for general banking purposes.

Interests of Experts

KPMG LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, Toronto, Ontario, is the external auditor who prepared the Independent Auditor's Report with respect to the consolidated statements of financial position of the Bank as at October 31, 2023 and 2022 and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. KPMG LLP has confirmed with respect to the Bank that it is independent within the meaning of the relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada and any applicable legislation or regulations.

Legal Matters

Certain legal matters in connection with the offering will be passed upon on behalf of the Bank by Stikeman Elliott LLP and on behalf of the Investment Dealers by Torys LLP. Partners and associates of each of Stikeman Elliott LLP and Torys LLP, as a group, own beneficially, directly and indirectly, as of the date hereof, less than 1% of securities of the Bank and its affiliates and associates.

Reliance on Exemptions for Well-Known Seasoned Issuers

The securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces and territories of Canada have adopted substantively harmonized blanket orders, including Ontario Instrument 44-501 – *Exemption from Certain Prospectus Requirements for Well-known Seasoned Issuers (Interim Class Order)*, extended by OSC Rule 44-502 – *Extension to Ontario Instrument* 44-501 *Certain Prospectus Requirements for Well-known Seasoned Issuers* (together with the equivalent local blanket orders in each of the other provinces and territories of Canada, collectively, the "WKSI Blanket Orders"). This Prospectus has been filed by the Bank in reliance upon the WKSI Blanket Orders, which permit "well-known seasoned issuers", or "WKSIs", to file a final short form base shelf prospectus as the first public step in an offering, and exempt qualifying issuers from certain disclosure requirements relating to such final short form base shelf prospectus.

Purchasers' Statutory Rights

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces and territories of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw from an agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or deemed receipt of a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces and territories, the securities legislation further provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, revisions of the price or damages if the Prospectus and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that the remedies for rescission, revisions of the price or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser's province or territory. The purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser's province or territory for the particulars of these rights or consult with a legal adviser.

Certificate of the Bank

Dated: March 4, 2024

This short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated in this prospectus by reference, will, as of the date of the last supplement to this prospectus relating to the securities offered by this prospectus and the supplement(s), constitute full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus and the supplement(s) as required by the *Bank Act* (Canada) and the regulations thereunder and the securities legislation of all provinces and territories of Canada.

(signed) L. Scott Thomson President and Chief Executive Officer (signed) Rajagopal Viswanathan Group Head and Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(signed) Aaron W. Regent Director (signed) Guillermo E. Babatz Director

Certificate of the Dealers

Dated: March 4, 2024

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, this short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated in this prospectus by reference, will, as of the date of the last supplement to this prospectus relating to the securities offered by this prospectus and the supplement(s), constitute full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus and the supplement(s) as required by the *Bank Act* (Canada) and the regulations thereunder and the securities legislation of all provinces and territories of Canada.

SCOTIA CAPITAL INC. (signed) James McGuigan

DESJARDINS SECURITIES INC. (signed) Ryan Godfrey

iA PRIVATE WEALTH INC. (signed) Richard Kassabian

MANULIFE WEALTH INC. (signed) Stephen Arvanitidis

RICHARDSON WEALTH LIMITED (signed) Nargis Sunderji

WELLINGTON-ALTUS PRIVATE WEALTH INC. (signed) Dominic D'Aoust